
Spring Lake District Library  

Board Meeting Agenda 

 

Wednesday, February 19, 2025 

Spring Lake District Library 

2pm 

 

1. Call to order 

 

2. Approve the agenda 

 

3. Public comment 

 

4. Approve the minutes – January 15, 2025 

 

5. Financial report and approval of bills – January 2024 

 

6. Director’s Report 

 

7. Old business 

     a.    Capital Projects – Future Planning 

     b.    Paid Time Off Policy 

     c.     

      d.  

       e. 

       

      10.  New business 

       a.  Library Director Evaluation Policy 

      b.   

      c.   

      d. 

 

 

11.  Public Comment 

 

12.  Adjourn the meeting 



 Spring Lake District Library Board Minutes 
January 15, 2025 

 

Present and voting:  Maria Boersma, Sheri Boon, Laurie Draeger, Mary Eagin,  
 Gordon Gallagher, Mark Powers  

 

Also present: Maggie McKeithan, Library Director; Amanda Rantanen, Business Manager 
 
Absent:  Skylar Garrison 
 

 
              

The meeting was held in person at the Spring Lake District Library 
 

The meeting was called to order at 2:02 p.m. by Gordon Gallagher 
 
Gordon introduced Maria Boersma as a new Board Member. 
 
Motion to approve the agenda, made by Laurie Draeger and supported by Mark Powers. The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 

Public Comment:  None  
 

Motion to approve the minutes of the December 18, 2024 Board meeting was made by Mark 
Powers and supported by Laurie Draeger. The motion was approved unanimously.   
 

Motion made by Mark Powers and supported by Sheri Boon to accept the financial reports 
from December 2024 and approve the payment of bills. The motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 

Director’s Report:   
Maggie reviewed her report as printed in the Board Packet and reviewed the year end 
statistics – noting that library use is up over previous years, especially when we consider 
that we were in the “mini-library” for a few months during the Refresh! 
 

Personnel Committee:   
 The personnel committee met this month – no action items brought to the Board.  

 

Old Business:  
Maggie noted that bids are out for architects for the Library Exterior Project – which includes 
renovation of the drive-thru area.  A donor has made a commitment to help with the cost of 
the renovations.  A meeting will be held on January 27, 2025 at 11 a.m. to discuss the bids 
and choose an architectural firm. 
 
Maggie’s 2024 Director’s Performance Review has been presented to Maggie and 
distributed to Board members.  Motion by Mary Eagin and supported by Laurie Draeger 
to approve a 5% pay raise for Maggie and move her to Level 3 for PTO.  The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 

New Business:   
Motion made by Laurie Draeger and supported by Sheri Boon to appoint the following 
officers for 2025:  Board President; Mary Eagin,  Board Vice President; Mark Powers, 
Board Treasurer: Gordon Gallagher, Board Secretary: Skylar Garrison.  The motion 
was approved unanimously. 
 
The following are the committee members for 2025: 
 Finance:  Gordon Gallagher, Laurie Draeger, Maria Boersma 
 Personnel:   Skylar Garrison, Mark Powers, Sheri Boon 
  

 

  



Spring Lake District Library Board Minutes   January 15, 2025                            Page 2 
 
Motion made by Sheri Boon and supported by Laurie Draeger to approve the proposed 
changes to the Staff Pay Step System, to align with the 2025 Minimum Wage increase 
in February.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

Public Comment: 
Mary Ann Herbst commented: 

 The Friends of the SLDL have quite a few new members who are all looking for 
opportunities to volunteer. She asked that the staff keep them in mind for events 
where extra hands would be helpful. 

 The Friends would like the opportunity to enhance their segment of the SLDL website 
as upgrades are made. 

 

Meeting was adjourned at 2:54 p.m.  
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted,   
       

        
Mary Eagin, Secretary 



 Spring Lake District Library Board Minutes 
Special Meeting 
January 27, 2025 

 

Present and voting:  Maria Boersma, Laurie Draeger, Mary Eagin, Gordon Gallagher, Mark Powers  

 

Also present: Maggie McKeithan, Library Director; Amanda Rantanen, Business Manager 
 
Absent:  Sheri Boon, Skylar Garrison 
 

 
              

The meeting was held in person at the Spring Lake District Library 
 

The meeting was called to order at 11:04 a.m. by Mary Eagin 
 
Motion to approve the agenda, made by Gordon Gallagher and supported by Laurie Draeger. 
The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

Public Comment:  None  
 

New Business:   
 
 Bids for the Library Exterior Project were received from: 

 Architektura – Grand Haven, MI 
 C2AE – Grand Rapids, MI 
 Concept Design Studio – Norton Shores, MI 

   
Details of the three bids were reviewed. 
 
Motion made by Gordon Gallagher and supported by Maria Boersma to accept the bid 
from Architektura – and request that Maggie work with them to finalize the details - 
with the request for phased billing, separating out design and later phases.  Not to 
exceed a total package cost of $60,000. The motion was approved unanimously. 
 

Public Comment:  None 
 

Meeting was adjourned at 11:31 a.m.  
 
 

 
Respectfully submitted,   
       

        
Mary Eagin, Acting Secretary 



Library Director Evaluation Policy 

Adopted January 26, 2018 

Revised February 19, 2025 

 

1.  The Library Director evaluation process will begin in January September of each year.  

Evaluation forms will be sent to Library Board Members, or distributed at the January 

Board Meeting, and should be completed and returned promptly to the Board President. 

 

2.  As an aid to the evaluation process, the Library Director job description will be included 

with the evaluation form. The Library Director may choose to prepare written comments 

on the goals and progress that has been made toward achieving each goal.  These 

comments will be included with the evaluation form. 

 

3.  Once evaluations have been received from at least a majority of the Board Members, the 

Library Board President and Vice-President will meet will assign two Board Members to 

compile the responses. Attempts will be made to get evaluations from every Board 

member, to ensure that the compiled evaluation reflects the comments of the entire 

board. 

 

4.  As a courtesy to the Library Director, the Library Board President may choose to set a 

meeting with the Library Director to review the compiled results and comments prior to 

the February October Board meeting.   The Library director will sign the compiled 

evaluation, along with the Library Board President.  Signed copies will be given to the 

Library Director and the Library Board President, and a copy will be kept in a secure 

location at the Library along with the signed individual Library Board Member’s 

evaluations.  If the Library Board President is unable to meet with the Library Director, 

then the Library Board Vice-President may perform this duty. 

 

5.  The Library Director has the option to comment in writing to the results of the evaluation. 

 

6.  A copy of the compiled report, along with the written comments of the Library Director, 

will be provided to each Board Member. At the February October Library Board meeting, 

the Library Director evaluation will be formally presented. The Library Director has the 

option to have the evaluation review discussion conducted in closed session. The 

compiled Library Director evaluation must receive Board approval in the form of a motion 

in open session to conclude the evaluation process. 



























Library Director’s Report 
Maggie McKeithan, Library Director 

February 19, 2025 
 
 
On Saturday, February 15, we held a special preview screening of the PBS documentary called 
Free For All: The Public Library. We partnered with WGVU to promote this program and they 
were able to provide funds so that we could bring in lunch from the Village Baker for the 40 
attendees. After the movie, there was a Q&A with Reference Librarian Kim Senior. She 
answered questions about how our library is funded and how we would deal with a book 
reconsideration request. 
 
Last week, we were visited by the bed-bug sniffing dogs. They come in every three months as 
part of our pest prevention strategy. The dogs walk through the library and alert if they smell 
anything suspicious. They can pinpoint it down to a specific shelf or piece of furniture. If they 
alert on anything, we have heat tents that the items can go into so the bed bugs get cooked. In 
this latest visit, they alerted on a specific chair. We examined it and didn’t see any evidence of 
bed bugs, but it went right into the heat tent. We always heat treat just in case. It is very 
normal to have the dogs alert on a few things in the building that may or may not have bed 
bugs. Abnormal would be if they found whole bookcases where they alerted. If we would ever 
have a widespread bed bug problem (and it has happened occasionally at other libraries), we 
would want to bring in a company with bigger equipment to treat the problem as quickly as 
possible. We would also want to inform the public and give clear messaging about how we are 
handling the problem and what they should do if they have library books at home.  
 
The regular monthly statistics now have 6 years of data and it might be getting a little unwieldy. 
I would love some feedback about how much history you’d like to see on these reports moving 
forward. Along with the regular statistics, I’ve also included some extra year end reports that I 
found interesting.  
 
Context for the agenda and packet –  
 
Financial Reports – The reports that we regularly produce have a different look than usual. 
Quickbooks for desktop is no longer being supported, so we’ve moved the General Fund to 
Quickbooks Online. Since our Capital Fund is much less complex, we will remain on desktop for 
now to save money on the monthly fee. Consequently, the reports for the General Fund will 
look a bit different from the Capital Fund reports, but they contain all the same information 
that they always have. Much like the statistics, I’m happy to receive feedback if there’s 
something you’d like to see included in these monthly financial reports.  
 
Capital Projects – Future Planning  At our January 27 meeting, the Library Board chose 
Architektura to continue our plans to develop the drive through space and work on the 
landscaping. We will begin meeting this week to start planning in earnest. According to the 
tentative schedule, we will spend spring and summer planning before taking the project out to 
bid in August/September. Through the process, we will have several review/decision points 
where the Board can decide to continue pursuing this project or hit pause. I have a meeting this 



week with the donor and Chris Riker at the Community Foundation to talk about the logistics of 
the donation. 
 
Paid Time Off Policy – At the January 15 meeting, the Library Board looked at a revision of the 
Paid Time Off (PTO) policy to prepare for the upcoming Michigan Earned Sick Time Act (ESTA). 
Our lawyer came back with comments so I’ve updated the draft to reflect that. In the packet, 
you’ll find our current policy, a marked draft that highlights the changes, and a clean copy of 
the new draft. 
 
Essentially, this new law requires all employers to provide at least 1 hour of sick time for every 
30 hours of time worked. Our current PTO policy already meets the minimum amount of sick 
time as required by law for most employees, so this will only impact a few of our employees 
who have not yet been receiving PTO. There is competing legislation trying to move through 
both the Michigan House and Senate that could make changes to the ESTA, but their impacts 
would continue to be minimal for us. 
 
Library Director Evaluation Policy – It’s been a few years (2021) since we looked at this policy. I 
would propose that we revise the policy so that the details match our current practice. 



Monthly Statistics - to January 31, 2025

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

Materials Circulation

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

Front Door Counter

2019 2020 2021 2022

2023 2024 2025

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

Program or Meeting Attendance

2019 2020 2021 2022

2023 2024 2025

January Feb March April May June July August Sept Oct Nov Dec

2019 18,833 38,212 58,928 81,384 103,149 129,787 161,828 187,141 208,810 230,243 247,426 263,461

2020 24,336 49,497 66,750 72,884 78,865 90,585 106,973 128,970 151,123 174,456 191,595 204,446

2021 17,145 36,243 57,589 77,105 97,601 121,738 147,796 171,342 192,065 213,837 234,847 255,039

2022 24,568 46,340 72,876 98,565 121,857 150,754 180,841 208,896 234,323 261,055 286,338 310,970

2023 27,262 51,876 80,592 106,084 130,098 157,830 187,341 215,013 237,663 256,993 274,957 292,909

2024 19,672 38,957 59,917 75,204 97,966 127,356 159,228 188,928 215,719 241,105 267,147 292,082

0
50,000

100,000
150,000
200,000
250,000
300,000
350,000

# 
o

f 
It

e
m

s 
C

h
e

ck
e

d
 O

u
t

Year To Date Circulation

January

2019 18,833

2020 24,336

2021 17,145

2022 24,568

2023 27,262

2024 19,672

2025 25,301

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

Year to Date Circulation

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025



0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

Print Materials Circulation

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

Digital Materials Circulation

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025



83%

69%

77%

78%
76% 71%

17%

31%

23%

22%

24%
29%

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Total Circulation

Print Materials Digital Materials

88%

88% 83%

87%
85% 76%

12%

12%
17%

13%

15%

24%

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

People Count

Visiting for Other Reasons Attending a Program or Meeting



2024 Circulation Statistics

Adult
39%

Juvenile
58%

Teen
3%

2024 Circulation By Age Group

Audiobooks
1%

Beyond Books (Hotspots, 
Board Games, Laptops 

and iPads, Videogames, 
Toys, STEAM kits)

2%

Books
43%

DVD's
7%

Graphic Novels
5%

Digital (Libby, Hoopla, 
Kanopy)

42%

2024 Circulation By Format



Paid Time Off 

Current Policy 

Last Review - April 26, 2023 

All full-time employees of SLDL, both exempt and non-exempt, are eligible to accrue Paid Time 

Off (PTO). This PTO allowance combines vacation, sick, and personal time into one bank that can 

be used for any of these reasons. 

We understand that our employees need time to rest and enjoy themselves outside of work.  We 

also understand that employees may have times when they need to be off work for an appointment 

or because they or a family member are ill. 

Each full-time employee will accrue PTO bi-weekly in hourly increments based on their length of 

service as defined below. 

Level 1: At a rate of 3.08 hours per bi-weekly pay period from date of hire to their 3rd 

anniversary (equivalent to approximately 80 hours or 10 days per anniversary year). 

Level 2: At a rate of 4.62 hours per bi-weekly pay period from their 3rd anniversary to their 

9th anniversary (equivalent to approximately 120 hours or 15 days per anniversary year). 

Level 3: At a rate of 6.15 hours per bi-weekly pay period beyond their 9th anniversary 

(equivalent to 160 hours or 20 days per anniversary year). 

Full-time employees will also receive a 40 hour lump sum of sick time into their PTO bank on 

January 1 of each year. If an employee is hired after January 1, this amount will be pro-rated for 

the year, based on start date. Part-time employees are not eligible for these lump sum hours. 

PTO is added to the employee’s PTO bank when a bi-weekly paycheck is issued. Employees may 

use time from their PTO bank in increments of 15 minutes. PTO will not be counted as hours 

worked for purposes of determining overtime. 

Part-time employees working 20 or more hours per week shall be eligible for pro-rated PTO 

benefits based on the actual hours worked in the bi-weekly pay period. Eligible part-time 

employees can not advance past Level 1 for PTO benefits. Employees working less than 20 hours 

per week, temporary employees, and contract employees are not eligible to accrue PTO. 

For any kind of covered paid leave category, including short or long-term disability leave, worker’s 

compensation leave, or any other kind as specified in this Employee Manual, PTO can be used to 

replace or supplement leave up to 100% of salary. Employees are required to use all accrued PTO 

before taking unpaid leave. 

PTO is not earned in pay periods during which unpaid leave, short or long-term disability leave, 

or worker’s compensation leave are taken. The time that is not covered by the PTO policy, and for 

which separate guidelines and policies exist, include company paid holidays, bereavement time 

off, required jury duty, and military service leave. 



To take PTO requires two days of notice to your supervisor unless the PTO is used for legitimate, 

unexpected illness or emergencies. In all instances, PTO must be approved by the employee’s 

supervisor in advance. We appreciate as much notice as possible when you know you expect to 

miss work for a scheduled absence. 

A full-time employee may carry a balance of up to 320 hours of unused PTO. When full-time 

employees accumulate 320 hours of PTO, they will cease accruing additional PTO until the 

employee’s total accumulation of unused PTO is less than 320 hours. 

A part-time employee may carry a balance of up to 160 hours of unused PTO. When part-time 

employees accumulate 160 hours of PTO, they will cease accruing additional PTO until the 

employee’s total accumulation of unused PTO is less than 160 hours. 

The Library will not pay employees for unused PTO except upon termination of employment. 

Upon termination of employment, all accrued but unused PTO will be paid out at the rate of pay 

applicable at the time of termination. The value of the unused PTO will be deposited into an 

eligible employee’s 115 Trust Account/Health Care Savings Program (HCSP), with MERS of 

Michigan. This contribution is considered non-taxable income and will be available to the 

terminated employee to be used for qualifying medical expenses. This benefit can only be accessed 

after employment is terminated.  

 



PAID TIME OFF  

Marked Draft - February 2025 
 

All full-time employees of SLDL, both exempt and non-exempt, are eligible to accrue Paid Time Off 
(PTO).  

We understand that our employees need time to rest and enjoy themselves outside of work. We also 
understand that employees may have times when they need to be off work for an appointment or because 
they or a family member are ill. This PTO allowance combines vacation, sick, and personal time into one 
bank that can be used for any of these reasons, including to be used as earned sick time as required by the 
Michigan Earned Sick Time Act, MCL 408.961 et seq (ESTA). For purposes of this policy, the Benefit 
Year is the calendar year. 

Each full-time employee will accrue PTO bi-weekly in hourly increments based on their length of service 
as defined below. 

Level 1: At a rate of 3.08 hours per bi-weekly pay period from date of hire to their 3rd 
anniversary (equivalent to approximately 80 hours or 10 days per anniversary year). 

Level 2: At a rate of 4.62 hours per bi-weekly pay period from their 3rd anniversary to their 9th 
anniversary (equivalent to approximately 120 hours or 15 days per anniversary year). 

Level 3: At a rate of 6.15 hours per bi-weekly pay period beyond their 9th anniversary (equivalent 
to 160 hours or 20 days per anniversary year). 

Accrual of PTO in accordance with this policy begins on February 21, 2025, or the date that the employee 
was hired, whichever is later. New employees must wait 90 days before using accrued PTO. 

All employee’s hours worked, and accrual and use of PTO will be tracked by SLDL in accordance with 
ESTA. If an employee’s accrual of PTO does not meet the minimum requirements of leave under ESTA 
(one hour of leave per 30 hours worked), the employee’s PTO bank will be credited to meet the minimum 
requirements set forth in ESTA. For hourly employees, time spent not actually working, including but not 
limited to time spent on vacation, holidays, disability leave, FMLA leave, and any other type of leave, 
does not count as hours worked for PTO accrual. PTO is not earned in pay periods during which unpaid 
leave, short or long-term disability leave, or worker’s compensation leave are taken. The time that is not 
covered by the PTO policy, and for which  Separate guidelines and policies exist include to address 
company paid holidays, bereavement time off, required jury duty, and military service leave. Exempt 
employees who do not record hours accrue PTO based upon a 40-hour workweek, or the number of hours 
in their normally scheduled workweek, whichever is less. 

Part-time employees working 20 or more hours per week shall be eligible for pro-rated PTO benefits 
based on the actual hours worked in the bi-weekly pay period. Eligible Part-time employees can not 



advance past Level 1 for PTO benefits. Employees working less than 20 hours per week, temporary 
employees, and contract employees are not eligible to accrue PTO. 

Full-time employees will also receive a 40 hour lump sum of sick time into their PTO bank on January 1 
of each year. If an a full-time employee is hired after January 1, this amount will be pro-rated for the year, 
based on start date. Part-time employees are not eligible for these lump sum hours. 

PTO is added to the employee’s PTO bank when a bi-weekly paycheck is issued. Employees may use 
time from their PTO bank in increments of 15 minutes. PTO will not be counted as hours worked for 
purposes of determining overtime. 

In addition to use for vacation or personal time, employees may use accrued PTO for any qualifying 
reason under ESTA, including the following reasons: 

• To care for the employee’s family member who is suffering from a mental illness, physical 
illness, injury, or health condition, or preventative medical care. 
• To care for the employee’s own mental illness, physical illness, injury, or health condition, or 
preventative medical care. 
• To address the employee’s or the employee’s family member’s physical, psychological, or 
legal effects of domestic violence or sexual assault. 
• To attend meetings at a child’s school or place of care related to the child’s health or 
disability or effects of domestic violence or sexual assault. 
• For reasons related to a public health emergency as described in MCL 406.964. 

 
For purposes of this policy, the term “family member” includes: 

• A biological, adopted or foster child, stepchild or legal ward, a child of a domestic partner, or 
a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis. 
• A biological parent, foster parent, stepparent, or adoptive parent or a legal guardian of an 
employee or an employee’s spouse or domestic partner or a person who stood in loco parentis 
when the employee was a minor child. 
• A person to whom the employee is legally married under the laws of any state or a domestic 
partner. 
• A grandparent. 
• A grandchild. 
• A biological, foster, or adopted sibling. 
• Any other individual related by blood or affinity whose close association with the employee 
is the equivalent of a family relationship. 

 
SLDL will not retaliate against an employee for requesting or using PTO for qualifying sick time 
reasons under ESTA for which the employee is eligible.   

Employees are required to use all accrued PTO before taking unpaid leave. For any kind of covered paid 
leave category, including short or long-term disability leave, worker’s compensation leave, or any other 
kind as specified in this Employee Manual, PTO can be used to replace or supplement leave up to 100% 
of salary.  



 

To take PTO requires two days of notice to your supervisor unless the PTO is used for legitimate, 
unexpected illness or emergencies. In all instances, PTO must be approved by the employee’s supervisor 
in advance. We appreciate as much notice as possible when you know you expect to miss work for a 
scheduled absence. If an employee’s use of PTO for sick time under ESTA exceeds 3 consecutive days on 
which the employee was scheduled to work, SLDL may request the employee to provide reasonable 
documentation that the use of PTO was for a permitted purpose. SLDL will not delay the use of PTO 
while waiting for reasonable documentation.  If SLDL requires documentation for the use of PTO, SLDL 
will pay the employee’s out of-pocket expenses incurred in obtaining the documentation. 

A full-time employee may carry a balance of up to 320 hours of unused PTO. When full-time employees 
accumulate 320 hours of PTO, they will cease accruing additional PTO until the employee’s total 
accumulation of unused PTO is less than 320 hours. 

A part-time employee may carry a balance of up to 160 hours of unused PTO. When part-time employees 
accumulate 160 hours of PTO, they will cease accruing additional PTO until the employee’s total 
accumulation of unused PTO is less than 160 hours. 

Employees carry over all unused PTO, but an employee’s use of PTO within a Benefit Year is limited to 
320 hours for full-time employees and 160 hours for part-time employees. 

The Library will not pay employees for unused PTO except upon termination of employment. Upon 
termination of employment, all up to 320 hours of full-time and 160 hours of part-time employee’s 
accrued but unused PTO will be paid out at the rate of pay applicable at the time of termination. The value 
of the unused PTO will be deposited into an eligible employee’s 115 Trust Account/Health Care Savings 
Program (HCSP), with MERS of Michigan. This contribution is considered non-taxable income and will 
be available to the terminated employee to be used for qualifying medical expenses. This benefit can only 
be accessed after employment is terminated.  

 



PAID TIME OFF  

Clean Draft - February 2025 
 

All employees of SLDL, both exempt and non-exempt, are eligible to accrue Paid Time Off (PTO).  

We understand that our employees need time to rest and enjoy themselves outside of work. We also 
understand that employees may have times when they need to be off work for an appointment or because 
they or a family member are ill. This PTO allowance combines vacation, sick, and personal time into one 
bank that can be used for any of these reasons, including to be used as earned sick time as required by the 
Michigan Earned Sick Time Act, MCL 408.961 et seq (ESTA). For purposes of this policy, the Benefit 
Year is the calendar year. 

Each full-time employee will accrue PTO bi-weekly in hourly increments based on their length of service 
as defined below. 

Level 1: At a rate of 3.08 hours per bi-weekly pay period from date of hire to their 3rd 
anniversary (equivalent to approximately 80 hours or 10 days per anniversary year). 

Level 2: At a rate of 4.62 hours per bi-weekly pay period from their 3rd anniversary to their 9th 
anniversary (equivalent to approximately 120 hours or 15 days per anniversary year). 

Level 3: At a rate of 6.15 hours per bi-weekly pay period beyond their 9th anniversary (equivalent 
to 160 hours or 20 days per anniversary year). 

Accrual of PTO in accordance with this policy begins on February 21, 2025, or the date that the employee 
was hired, whichever is later. New employees must wait 90 days before using accrued PTO. 

All employee’s hours worked, and accrual and use of PTO will be tracked by SLDL in accordance with 
ESTA. If an employee’s accrual of PTO does not meet the minimum requirements of leave under ESTA 
(one hour of leave per 30 hours worked), the employee’s PTO bank will be credited to meet the minimum 
requirements set forth in ESTA. For hourly employees, time spent not actually working, including but not 
limited to time spent on vacation, holidays, disability leave, FMLA leave, and any other type of leave, 
does not count as hours worked for PTO accrual. Separate guidelines and policies exist to address 
company paid holidays, bereavement time off, required jury duty, and military service leave. Exempt 
employees who do not record hours accrue PTO based upon a 40-hour workweek, or the number of hours 
in their normally scheduled workweek, whichever is less. 

Part-time employees shall be eligible for pro-rated PTO benefits based on the actual hours worked in the 
bi-weekly pay period. Part-time employees can not advance past Level 1 for PTO benefits. 

Full-time employees will also receive a 40 hour lump sum into their PTO bank on January 1 of each year. 
If a full-time employee is hired after January 1, this amount will be pro-rated for the year, based on start 
date. Part-time employees are not eligible for these lump sum hours. 



Employees may use time from their PTO bank in increments of 15 minutes. PTO will not be counted as 
hours worked for purposes of determining overtime. 

In addition to use for vacation or personal time, employees may use accrued PTO for any qualifying 
reason under ESTA, including the following reasons: 

• To care for the employee’s family member who is suffering from a mental illness, physical 
illness, injury, or health condition, or preventative medical care. 
• To care for the employee’s own mental illness, physical illness, injury, or health condition, or 
preventative medical care. 
• To address the employee’s or the employee’s family member’s physical, psychological, or 
legal effects of domestic violence or sexual assault. 
• To attend meetings at a child’s school or place of care related to the child’s health or 
disability or effects of domestic violence or sexual assault. 
• For reasons related to a public health emergency as described in MCL 406.964. 

 
For purposes of this policy, the term “family member” includes: 

• A biological, adopted or foster child, stepchild or legal ward, a child of a domestic partner, or 
a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis. 
• A biological parent, foster parent, stepparent, or adoptive parent or a legal guardian of an 
employee or an employee’s spouse or domestic partner or a person who stood in loco parentis 
when the employee was a minor child. 
• A person to whom the employee is legally married under the laws of any state or a domestic 
partner. 
• A grandparent. 
• A grandchild. 
• A biological, foster, or adopted sibling. 
• Any other individual related by blood or affinity whose close association with the employee 
is the equivalent of a family relationship. 

 
SLDL will not retaliate against an employee for requesting or using PTO for qualifying sick time 
reasons under ESTA for which the employee is eligible.   

Employees are required to use all accrued PTO before taking unpaid leave. For any kind of covered paid 
leave category, including short or long-term disability leave, worker’s compensation leave, or any other 
kind as specified in this Employee Manual, PTO can be used to replace or supplement leave up to 100% 
of salary.  

To take PTO requires two days of notice to your supervisor unless the PTO is used for legitimate, 
unexpected illness or emergencies. In all instances, PTO must be approved by the employee’s supervisor 
in advance. We appreciate as much notice as possible when you expect to miss work for a scheduled 
absence. If an employee’s use of PTO for sick time under ESTA exceeds 3 consecutive days on which the 
employee was scheduled to work, SLDL may request the employee to provide reasonable documentation 
that the use of PTO was for a permitted purpose. SLDL will not delay the use of PTO while waiting for 
reasonable documentation.  If SLDL requires documentation for the use of PTO, SLDL will pay the 
employee’s out of-pocket expenses incurred in obtaining the documentation. 



Employees carry over all unused PTO, but an employee’s use of PTO within a Benefit Year is limited to 
320 hours for full-time employees and 160 hours for part-time employees. 

The Library will not pay employees for unused PTO except upon termination of employment. Upon 
termination of employment, up to 320 hours of full-time and 160 hours of part-time employee’s accrued 
but unused PTO will be paid out at the rate of pay applicable at the time of termination.  


	2-19-25 Board Agenda.pdf
	SLDL Board Minutes 1-15-2025
	SLDL Board Minutes 1-27-2025 - Special Meeting
	Library Director Evaluation Policy revised draft 2025.pdf
	SLDL Financial Reports JAN 2025.pdf
	Library Director's Report 2-19-25.pdf
	Library Board Statistics 2025 - Jan 31 pg1.pdf
	Library Board Statistics 2025 - Jan 31 pg2.pdf
	Library Board Statistics 2025 - Year Totals.pdf
	Library Board Statistics 2025 - 2024 Circ Data.pdf
	Paid Time Off policy - approved April 2023.pdf
	Paid Time Off marked draft - Feb 2025.pdf
	PAID TIME OFF  
	Marked Draft - February 2025 

	Paid Time Off clean draft - Feb 2025.pdf
	PAID TIME OFF  
	Clean Draft - February 2025 


